
 
 
 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

JUNE 17, 2013 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 
 
 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

(30 minutes maximum, which may be extended at the Mayor’s discretion, with an opportunity to speak 
for no more than 5 minutes per speaker allowed) 

 
VI. APPOINTMENTS 
 

1. Consider appointing the best candidate to the Newberg City Council District #3 position.  (Pg. 3) 
 

2. Consider appointing Stuart Brown, Steve Comfort, and Terry Emery to the Affordable Housing 
Commission. (Pg. 5)

 
VII. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2013-3052 authorizing the city manager to execute 
an IGA with ODOT for College Street right-of-way services.  (Pgs. 7-53) 

 
2. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2013-3055 approving the purchase of a replacement 

crane truck with a Freightliner Chassis.  (Pgs. 55-56)
 
3. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2013-3053 designating the assistant city manager to 

serve as city manager pro tem as circumstances warrant and establishing a subsequent chain of 
command.  (Pgs. 57-60)

 
4. Consider a motion approving the May 20, 2013, City Council meeting minutes.  (Pgs. 61-67)
 

VIII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

1. Consider a motion approving the Ninth Street vacation and directing staff to prepare an 
Ordinance for final approval.   (Pgs. 69-88)
(Legislative Hearing) 

The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (June 17, 2013) Page 1 of 2 

Page 1



The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (June 17, 2013) Page 2 of 2 

 
2. Presentation from Waste Management’s results on their Dundee Curbside Glass Pilot Project.(P. 89-109) 

 
3. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2013-3054 approving a rate increase request by 

Waste Management and establishing a curbside glass pick up for residential customers.  (Pgs. 111-116)
 (Legislative Hearing) 
 

IX. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City 
Recorder’s Office of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 
48 business hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact the City Recorder at (503) 537-1283. For TTY services please 
dial 711. 
 
Council accepts comments on agenda items during the meeting.  Fill out a form identifying the item you wish to speak on prior to the 
agenda item beginning and turn it into the City Recorder. The exception is land use hearings, which requires a specific public 
hearing process.  The City Council asks written testimony be submitted to the City Recorder before 4:30 p.m. on the preceding 
Wednesday.  Written testimony submitted after that will be brought before the Council on the night of the meeting for consideration 
and a vote to accept or not accept it into the record. 

Page 2



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: June 17, 2013 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion XX  Information ___ 
No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  The City Council District No. 3 
Appointment for a term expiring December 31, 
2016. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Norma Alley, City Recorder 
Dept.: Administration  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Consider a motion to appoint the most qualified candidate to fill the City Council District No. 3 vacant 
position for a term expiring December 31, 2016. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
On November 6, 2012, Spencer Haley was elected to fill the City Council District #3 seat by the electorate.  
Due to business conflict, he did not take the oath of office; therefore, the City declared the position vacant 
per Resolution No. 2013-3029 on February 4, 2013. 
 
During the month of March, the position was advertised, a letter was drafted by Mayor Bob Andrews and 
sent to residents within the boundaries of District No. 3, and applications were accepted for the position.  
Fourteen applications were received.  Two applicants did not meet the requirements and the remaining 
twelve were sent supplemental questions.  From those twelve, only two returned the supplemental 
questionnaire showing continued interest in the position.  Those two candidates are being interviewed 
tonight.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  
 
The council sets policy and direction for the City.  It is critical for the city council to have a full complement 
of its membership in order to carry on the business of the City.  The selecting the most qualified candidate to 
fulfill the District No. 3 vacant position is important to ensure the citizens within its boundaries are fairly 
represented.   
 

Page 3



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 4



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: June 17, 2013 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion XX  Information ___ 
No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Appoint Stuart Brown, Steve Comfort, 
and Terry Emery as initial members of an 
Affordable Housing Commission 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Mayor Bob Andrews 
Dept.: Administration 
File No.: G-12-007 

 
RECOMMENDATION: To consent to the appointment by the Mayor of Stuart Brown, Steve Comfort, and 
Terry Emery as initial members of an Affordable Housing Commission.   Recommended terms of 
appointment are as follows:  Terry Emery for 3 years; Stuart Brown for 2 years; and Steve Comfort for 1 
year.   
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  On March 5, 2012, the Newberg City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2012-
2749, establishing the Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Fund.  On April 17, 2012, the Newberg City 
Council approved Resolution No. 2012-2988, establishing the policies and procedures for administration of 
the Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Fund.  Section 5.7 of this resolution states the following: 
 

The City of Newberg shall form an affordable housing commission (AHC) that consists of three 
members appointed by the Mayor with the consent of the city council.  Membership of the 
commission should reflect representative broad interests regarding affordable housing in the 
community.  The commission shall review applications for Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Funds 
to determine project eligibility and evaluate the applications based on the selection criteria.  The 
commission shall provide recommendations to the city council which shall make final award 
decisions.  In addition, the commission shall meet annually to prepare the NAHTF’s annual NOFA 
and RFP for consideration of approval by the city council.  Otherwise, the commission will meet as 
necessary during the year. 

  
Terms for members appointed to the Affordable Housing Commission are not specified in Resolution No. 
2012-2988.  Therefore, the Mayor recommends the appointments be made in staggered, three year terms. 
This method will provide membership continuity for the Commission. 
 
For privacy purposes, the proposed appointees’ applications are retained in the City Recorder’s Office.   
Please call 503-537-1283 to request a copy. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  The Affordable Housing Commission will provide thoughtful advice to the 
City Council on how to best serve the affordable housing needs of our community with the resources of the 
Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Fund. 
 

Page 5



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 6



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3052 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: June 17, 2013 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 

No. No.  No. 2013-3052 

SUBJECT:  Authorize the city manager to execute 

an amendment to an Intergovernmental Agreement 

(IGA) with the State of Oregon that provides right of 

way services for the N. College Street Sidewalks and 

Bike Lanes Improvement Project. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Paul Chiu, Senior Engineer 

Dept.:  

File No.:  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

Adopt Resolution No. 2013-3052 authorizing the city manager to execute an amendment to an 

Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the State of Oregon that provides right of way services for the N. 

College Street Sidewalks and Bike Lanes Improvement Project. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

 

The existing Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) No. 27928 for the College Street right of way services to 

be performed by the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) was executed on April 17, 2012.  This 

IGA, attached as Attachment “1”, allows a maximum spending of $117,000.00 from the Transportation 

Enhancement (TE) funds.  The ODOT TE funding is guided by IGA No. 27316 and its amendment, which is 

attached as Attachment “2”. 

 

The original right of way and easement acquisition estimate was for 13 property files totaling 5,490 square 

feet of acquisition.  To meet environmental regulations, stormwater detention and treatment utilizing rain 

gardens is proposed for the project, and the needed right of way files have increased to 18 totaling 7,927 

square feet of acquisition.  The additional acquisition is a 45% increase, or $24,000.00 above the original 

estimate. 

 

The increased compensation for impacts to the existing site improvements such as fences, trees, and 

landscaping is estimated at $18,000.00 by ODOT.  The original estimate for the ODOT acquisition labor 

cost was $62,000.00, and the increase in the number of acquisition files adds another $28,000.00.  Adding a 

contingency, the total estimated cost to acquire the needed rights of way and easements for the project is 

amended to be $198,000.00.  The amendment to IGA No. 27928 is attached as Exhibit “A”.  Construction of 

this project is still planned for spring/summer of 2014. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

 

The amendment to the right of way services agreement for the Newberg TE project is considered by ODOT 

as a budget programming, or a financial plan adjustment, with no change in the total $880,000.00 TE 

commitment from ODOT at this time.  The City will see a reduction in the available construction funds for 

the project that equals the line item increase for right of way and easement acquisition.  The costs for 

construction phase of the project will be re-evaluated when the final estimated construction costs for the 

100% design plans are completed by the ODOT consultant in August, 2013.  This summer an IGA 

amendment will be submitted to City Council, to extend the project deadline for the construction bid 

Page 7



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3052 PAGE 2 

solicitations from September 30, 2013, to March 31, 2014.  Once the construction budget is finalized, the 

project limits will be affirmed or modified, and/or the funding commitments from ODOT and the City will 

be adjusted. 

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 

 

Approval of this IGA amendment for the project allows the right of way and easement acquisition phase to 

be fully completed prior to the 2014 construction season.  This project provides a critical pedestrian and 

bicyclist connection along a major arterial route in accordance with the City’s Transportation System Plan 

and the Newberg ADA/Pedestrian/Bike Route Improvement Plan. 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3052 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3052 

 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 

AMENDMENT TO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) WITH 

THE STATE OF OREGON THAT PROVIDES RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES 

FOR THE N. COLLEGE STREET SIDEWALKS AND BIKE LANES 

IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
 

 

RECITALS: 

 

1. On April 17, 2012, the City executed Agreement No. 27928 with the Oregon Department of 

Transportation (ODOT) to receive the State’s right of way services for the acquisition of rights of 

way and easements needed for the N. College Street Sidewalks and Bike Lane Improvement Project. 

 This IGA provides a maximum of $117,000.00 for the ODOT right of way services. 

 

2. Due to the federal and state environmental determination that stormwater detention and treatment is 

required for the project to meet the joint permit application (JPA) requirements, the right of way and 

easement needs for the project have increased.  The increased cost to acquire the rights of way and 

easements necessitates an amendment to IGA No. 27928, adjusting the estimated cost allocates to 

$198,000.00 for the ODOT right-of-way services.  The construction phase of the project will have a 

corresponding funding reduction.  There is no change in the total Transportation Enhancement 

commitment from ODOT at this time, currently at $880,000.00 for the project. 

 

3. The costs for construction phase of the project will be re-evaluated in August, 2013, to affirm or 

modify the project limits and/or adjust the funding commitments from ODOT and the City. 

 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 The Newberg City Council does hereby authorize the city manager to execute an IGA amendment 

with ODOT that provides the right of way services for the N. College Street Sidewalks and Bike 

Lanes Improvement Project.  The amendment to IGA No. 27928 is shown in Exhibit “A”, which is 

attached and by this reference hereby adopted. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: June 18, 2013. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this         day of June, 2013. 

 

_______________________________ 

Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 

 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 20th day of June, 2013. 

 

____________________ 

Bob Andrews, Mayor 

Page 50



Misc. Contracts and Agreements 
No. 27928  

Key No. 17382 

Oregon Department of Transportation 
AMENDMENT NUMBER 01 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
FOR RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES 

OR 219: Vermillion – Aldercrest Sidewalk and Bike Lanes 
City of Newberg 

 
The STATE OF OREGON, acting by and through its Department of Transportation, 
hereinafter referred to as “State;” and the CITY OF NEWBERG, acting by and through its 
elected officials, hereinafter referred to as “Agency,” entered into an Agreement on April 
17, 2012. Said Agreement covers the roles and responsibilities of the Parties regarding 
the real property to be used as part of right of way for street improvements.  

It has now been determined by State and Agency that the Agreement referenced above 
shall be amended to update language and increase the total funding for the right of way 
phase of the Project. Except as expressly amended below, all other terms and conditions 
of the Agreement are still in full force and effect.  

TERMS OF AGREEMENT, Paragraph 1, Page 1, which reads:  

1. Under such authority, State and Agency agree to perform certain right of way 
activities shown in Special Provisions – Exhibit A, attached hereto and by this 
reference made a part hereof. If the State performs right of way services on behalf of 
the Agency, under no conditions shall Agency’s obligations for said services exceed a 
maximum of $117,000, including all expenses, unless agreed upon by both Parties. 

Shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

1. Under such authority, to accomplish the objectives in Agreement No. 27316, State 
and Agency agree to perform certain right of way activities shown in Special 
Provisions – Exhibit A, attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof. If 
the State performs right of way services on behalf of the Agency, under no conditions 
shall Agency’s obligations for said services exceed a maximum of $198,000, including 
all expenses, unless agreed upon by both Parties. 

PAYMENT FOR SERVICES AND EXPENDITURES, Paragraph 1, Page 3, which 
reads: 

1. In consideration for the services performed by State (as identified in the attached 
Exhibit A), Agency agrees to pay or reimburse State a maximum amount of $117,000. 
Said maximum amount shall include reimbursement for all expenses, including travel 
expenses. Travel expenses shall be reimbursed to State in accordance with the 
current Oregon Department of Administrative Services’ rates. Any expenditure beyond 
federal participation will be from, or reimbursed from, Agency funds. Payment in 
Agency and/or federal funds in any combination shall not exceed said maximum, 
unless agreed upon by both Parties. 

Page 51



City of Newberg / State of Oregon – Dept. of Transportation 
Agreement No. 27928, Amendment No. 1 

 

 Page 2 of 3 

Shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

1. In consideration for the services performed by State (as identified in the attached 
Exhibit A), Agency agrees to pay or reimburse State a maximum amount of $198,000. 
Said maximum amount shall include reimbursement for all expenses, including travel 
expenses. Travel expenses shall be reimbursed to State in accordance with the 
current Oregon Department of Administrative Services’ rates. Any expenditure beyond 
federal participation will be from, or reimbursed from, Agency funds. Payment in 
Agency and/or federal funds in any combination shall not exceed said maximum 
amount, unless agreed upon by both Parties. 

GENERAL PROVISIONS, Paragraph 14, Page 6, which reads: 

14. This Agreement and attached exhibits constitute the entire agreement between the 
Parties on the subject matter hereof.  There are no understandings, agreements, or 
representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding this Agreement.  No 
waiver, consent, modification or change of terms of this Agreement shall bind either 
Party unless in writing and signed by both Parties and all necessary approvals have 
been obtained.  Such waiver, consent, modification or change, if made, shall be 
effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose given.  The failure of 
State to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by State 
of that or any other provision. 

Shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

14. This Agreement and attached exhibits and Agreement No. 27316 constitute the entire 
agreement between the Parties on the subject matter hereof.  There are no 
understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein 
regarding this Agreement.  No waiver, consent, modification or change of terms of this 
Agreement shall bind either Party unless in writing and signed by both Parties and all 
necessary approvals have been obtained.  Such waiver, consent, modification or 
change, if made, shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific 
purpose given.  The failure of State to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall 
not constitute a waiver by State of that or any other provision. 

This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts (facsimile or otherwise) all of 
which when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all Parties, 
notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each copy of 
this Amendment so executed shall constitute an original. 

THE PARTIES, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that their signing 
representatives have read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its 
terms and conditions. 

This Project is in the 2012-2015 Statewide Transportation Improvement Program, (Key 
No. 17382) that was adopted by the Oregon Transportation Commission on March 21, 
2012 (or subsequently approved by amendment to the STIP).  

Page 52



City of Newberg / State of Oregon – Dept. of Transportation 
Agreement No. 27928, Amendment No. 1 

 

 Page 3 of 3 

CITY OF NEWBERG, by and through its 
elected officials  
 
By _____________________________ 
      Mayor 
 

Date ___________________________ 

 
By _____________________________ 
      City Manager 
 

Date ___________________________ 

 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 
 
By _____________________________ 
      City Legal Counsel 
 

Date ___________________________ 
 
 
Agency Contact: 
Paul Chiu, P.E., Senior Engineer 
City of Newberg, Public Works-Engineering 
PO Box 970 
Newberg, OR  97132 
Phone: (503) 554-1751 
Email: paul.chiu@newbergoregon.gove 
 
 

STATE OF OREGON, by and through 
its Department of Transportation 
 
By _____________________________ 
      State Right of Way Manager 
 

Date ___________________________ 

 
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED 
 
By _____________________________ 
      Region 2 Manager 
 

Date ___________________________ 

 
By _____________________________ 
      Region 2 Right of Way Manager 
 

Date ___________________________ 

 
By _____________________________ 
      Region 2 Right of Way Program Manager 
 

Date ___________________________ 

 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL 
SUFFICIENCY 
 
By____________________________ 
    Assistant Attorney General  
 

Date __________________________ 
 
 
State Contact: 
Melissa J. Mallott, Program Manager 
ODOT, Region 2, Right of Way 
455 Airport Road, SE, Bldg. A 
Salem, OR  97301 
Phone: (503) 986-2772 
Email: melissa.j.mallott@odot.state.or.us 
 

 

Page 53

mailto:paul.chiu@newbergoregon.gove
mailto:melissa.j.mallott@odot.state.or.us


THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 54



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3055 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: June 17, 2013 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2013-3055 

SUBJECT:  Resolution approving the purchase of a 
replacement crane truck with a Freightliner chassis 
from Carco Industries in the amount of $177,526.00. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Russ Reed, Interim Operations 
Superintendent 
Dept.: Public Works Operations Division 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2013-3055 approving the purchase of a replacement crane truck with a Freightliner 
chassis from Carco Industries in the amount of $177,526.00. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The City of Newberg currently owns a 2002 Ford F-550 truck chassis with a manual crane. It is scheduled to 
be replaced this year.  
 
When originally purchased as our first crane truck, it was assumed to be adequate for the type of duty and 
life-cycle requirements foreseen. Over the past twelve years, we have encountered numerous instances of 
where it is inadequate for its need. Some examples include a lack of extension and capacity when pulling 
rotors in the Wastewater Treatment Plant oxidation ditches, and a lack of adequate remote operation. There 
have been instances where we have had to rent larger, stationary cranes to do the work this new crane truck 
would easily handle.  
 
The new influent pump station being installed during the current Wastewater Treatment Plant upgrade will 
have pumps which cannot be pulled and serviced with our existing crane truck. We have added three new 
remote sewage pump stations and one new remote pump station at the Water Treatment Plant, effectively 
doubling the number of pumps previously needing to be pulled. 
 
The replacement 14,000 lb. crane truck/Freightliner chassis combination has numerous safety and 
operational improvements which will increase division efficiency, reduce operations and maintenance costs, 
enhance safety, and provide us with the ability to perform tasks our current equipment cannot handle.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
Pending approval of the 2013-2014 Budget, the purchase of a replacement crane truck and chassis will be 
fully funded from the equipment replacement reserve account 06-5131-610400 in the amount of 
$177,526.00.  
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
This purchase will allow the Public Works Operations Division to meet existing and future needs, lower 
vehicle operation and maintenance costs, and increase operator safety and efficiencies. 

Page 55



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3055 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF A REPLACEMENT 
CRANE TRUCK WITH A FREIGHTLINER CHASSIS FROM CARCO 
INDUSTRIES IN THE AMOUNT OF $177,526.00  

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. The City of Newberg PW Operations Division utilizes its crane truck to pull and maintain equipment 

at remote sewer and water pump stations within Newberg city limits. 
 
2. The current 2002 crane truck is reaching the end of its serviceable life.  Over the years, 

improvements have been made to crane trucks to increase their efficiency and improve operator 
safety.  Replacement of the crane truck with a larger 14,000 lb. crane truck/Freightliner chassis 
combination will allow staff to realize these improvements and continue to meet the maintenance 
needs of the City of Newberg for the next fifteen years. 
 

3. The PW Operations Division developed specifications for a new crane truck and solicited bids. 
Carco Industries was awarded the purchase contract for the crane truck and Freightliner chassis.  
 

4. The City of Newberg selects Carco Industries to provide a new 14,000 lb. crane on a Freightliner 
chassis at a cost of $177,526.00. 

 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The City Council, acting as the Contract Review Board, authorizes the city manager to enter into all 

contracts and agreements for the purchase of a replacement crane truck and Freightliner chassis.  
The city attorney will approve all contracts and agreements as to form and content. 
 

2. The City of Newberg will purchase the crane truck and Freightliner chassis by using funds from the 
wastewater equipment replacement reserve account 06-5131-610400. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: June 18, 2013. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 17th day of June, 2013. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 20th day of June, 2013. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3055 PAGE 1 

Page 56



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3053 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: June 17, 2013 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2013-3053 

SUBJECT:  Repealing Resolution No. 2005-2557, 
authorizing the city manager pro tem designation for 
short term absence of city manager, and designating 
subsequent chain of command. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Lee Elliott, Assistant City Manager 
Dept.: City manager’s Office 
File No.:  

RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2013-3053 Repealing Resolution No. 2005-2557, authorizing the city manager pro 
tem designation for short term absence of the city manager, and designating subsequent chain of command.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
In November 1982, the electorate approved a revision of the Newberg City Charter providing for a Mayor, 
Council, and City Manager form of government. 
 
In accordance with that Charter amendment, which is attached, a manager pro tem shall be appointed by the 
City Council to serve in case of absence and temporary disability of the manager or whenever the office 
becomes vacant in accordance with the following section of the November, 2006, City Charter. 
 

Chapter VIII 
APPOINTIVE OFFICERS 

Section 34 City Manager. 
(h) When the manager is temporarily disabled from acting as manager or when the office of 
manager becomes vacant, the city council must appoint a manager pro tem. The manager pro tem 
has the authority and duties of manager, except that a pro tem manager may appoint or remove 
employees only with city council approval. 

From time to time, the manager may be absent from the city for short durations on business, vacation, 
illness, or for other reasons.  During these times, the Council wishes to provide for the uninterrupted 
functioning of city government by designating a public official who would act as the manager pro tem 
during these intervals. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  
 
The purpose of this resolution is to ensure the uninterrupted functioning of the City government without 
needing to obtain approval of the City Council to appoint a manager pro tem for periods of short term 
absence of the City manager. 

Page 57



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3053 PAGE 2 

Attachment “A”  
to Resolution No. 2013-3053RCA 

 
 

City Charter Excerpt: 
Chapter VIII 

APPOINTIVE OFFICERS 

Section 34 City Manager. 
(a) The office of city manager is established as the administrative head of the city government. The city 
manager is responsible to the mayor and city councilors for the proper administration of all city 
business. The city manager will assist the mayor and city councilors in the development of city policies, 
and carry out policies established by ordinances, resolutions, and orders. 

(b) A majority of the city council must appoint and may remove the manager. The appointment must be 
made without regard to political considerations and solely on the basis of education and experience in 
competencies and practices of local government management. 

(c) The manager need not reside in the city or the state at the time of appointment. 

(d) The manager may be appointed for a definite or an indefinite term, and may be removed at any time 
by a majority of the city council. The city council must fill the office by appointment as soon as 
practicable after the vacancy occurs. 

(e) The manager must: 
(1) Attend all city council meetings unless excused by the mayor or city council; 
(2) Make reports and recommendations to the city council about the needs of the city; 
(3) Administer and enforce all city ordinances, resolutions, orders, franchises, leases, contracts, 
permits, and other city decisions; 
(4) Appoint, supervise and remove city employees; 
(5) Organize city departments and administrative structure; 
(6) Prepare and administer the annual city budget; 
(7) Administer city utilities and property; 
(8) Encourage and support regional and intergovernmental cooperation; 
(9) Promote cooperation among the city council, staff and citizens in developing city policies, and 
building a sense of community; 
(10) Perform other duties as directed by the city council; 
(11) Delegate duties, but remain responsible for acts of all subordinates. 
 

(f) The manager has no authority over the city council, city attorney, or the judicial functions of the 
municipal judge. 

(g) The manager, the city attorney, and other employees designated by the city council may sit at city 
council meetings but have no vote. The manager may take part in all city council discussions. 

Page 58



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3053 PAGE 3 

(h) When the manager is temporarily disabled from acting as manager or when the office of manager 
becomes vacant, the city council must appoint a manager pro tem. The manager pro tem has the 
authority and duties of manager, except that a pro tem manager may appoint or remove employees only 
with city council approval. 

(i) No city council member may directly or indirectly attempt to coerce the manager or a candidate for 
the office of manager in the appointment or removal of any city employee, or in administrative decisions 
regarding city property or contracts. Violation of this prohibition is grounds for removal from office by 
a majority of the city council after a public hearing. In city council meetings, city councilors may 
discuss or suggest anything with the manager relating to city business. 
 
 

Page 59



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3053 
 

A RESOLUTION REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 2005-2557, 
AUTHORIZING CITY MANAGER PRO TEM DESIGNATION FOR SHORT 
TERM ABSENCE OF THE CITY MANAGER, AND DESIGNATING A 
SUBSEQUENT CHAIN OF COMMAND  

 
RECITALS: 

 
1. In November of 1982, the electorate approved a revision of the Newberg City Charter providing for 

a Mayor, Council, and City Manager form of government.  In accordance with the Charter 
amendment, the city manager is the administrative head of the government of the City. 

 
1. A manager pro tem shall be appointed by the City Council to serve in case of absence and temporary 

disability of the manager or whenever the office becomes vacant in accordance with section 34(h) of 
the City Charter. 

 
2. From time to time, the manager may be absent from the City for short durations on business, 

vacation, illness, or for other reasons.  During these times, the Council wishes to provide a defined 
chain of command for the uninterrupted functioning of city government by designating a public 
official who would act as the manager pro tem during these intervals. 

 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The City Council, in its sole discretion and in accordance with the City Charter Section 34(h), may 

designate any public official as the manager pro tem. 
 
2. The City Council designates the following public officials as the manager pro tem any time the city 

manager is absent from the city or temporarily disabled.  The appointment of acting manager pro 
tem will be for a period of time not to exceed four (4) weeks.  The manager pro tem, shall exercise 
all powers and duties provided for the manager pro tem in the following chain of command order as. 

i. Assistant city manager. 
ii. If the assistant city manager cannot act as manager pro tem, then the city attorney will 

act as the manager pro tem. 
 

3. The purpose of this resolution is to provide the efficient and continuous operation of the City 
government. 

 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: June 18, 2013. 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 17th day of June, 2013. 

 
_______________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 20th day of June, 2013. 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3053 PAGE 1 

Page 60



City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: June 17, 2013 
Order        Ordinance          Resolution              Motion  XX         Information ___ 
No.                   No.                        No. 
SUBJECT:    Approve the May 20, 2013, City 
Council Meeting minutes. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:  Norma Alley, City Recorder 
Dept.:  Administration  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
Approve City Council minutes for preservation and permanent retention in the City’s historical records. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The City of Newberg City Council held a public meeting and minutes were recorded in text.  In accordance 
to Oregon State Records Management law, the City of Newberg must preserve these minutes in hard copy 
form for permanent retention. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  
 
None. 

Page 61



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (May 20, 2013) Page 1 of 6 

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
MAY 20, 2013 

7:00 P.M. MEETING 
PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 

 
A work session was held prior to the meeting.  A presentation was given from Nancy Boyer, Mid-Willamette 
Valley Council of Governments, regarding the city attorney recruitment process.  No action was taken and no 
decisions were made.  Councilors and the Mayor were present with Stephen McKinney arriving at 6:15 PM and 
Mike Corey being absent (excused). 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Andrews called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present: Mayor Bob Andrews Denise Bacon Ryan Howard 
 Lesley Woodruff Bart Rierson  
 Stephen McKinney [Arrived 6:15 PM] 
 
Members Absent: Mike Corey (excused) 
 
Staff Present: Daniel Danicic, City Manager Terrence Mahr, City Attorney 
 Janelle Nordyke, Finance Director Barton Brierley, Planning & Building Director 
 Lee Elliott, Assistant City Manager Jessica Nunley, Acting City Recorder  
 Nicole Tannler, Minutes Recorder  
 
Others Present: Lewis Schaad, Robert Dailey, Paul Bock, Rick Rogers, and Ernie Munch 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
IV. CITY MANAGERS REPORT 
 
Mr. Daniel Danicic, City Manager, reported the City of Newberg participated in Waste Management’s local 
hazardous waste program and 168 pounds of medication was collected.  He is making progress on the goal 
setting meeting and will use an electronic poll to find a time in September for a meeting.  There is a City Club 
presentation by the Mayor tomorrow for information on local taxes and Mr. Barton Brierley, planning and 
building director, will be discussing business license information. 
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Mayor Andrews opened public comments. 
 
Mr. Robert Dailey, Executive Director of Chehalem Cultural Center, and representing the Ford Family 
Foundation Leadership Cohort 3, asked for financial support from the City.  Cohort 3’s project for this year is a 
planetary path in Newberg.  It will be an accurate representation of the solar system, with planets and art located 
throughout downtown and south Newberg.  It is an art in public spaces project to put art out into the community 
with a solar system theme. They are asking for $500.00 from the Community Support budget for this project.  
Councilor Ryan Howard asked staff if we have $500.00 in the Community Support fund this year.  Ms. Janelle 
Nordyke, finance director, responded for the 2013-2014 budget they have $500.00.   

Page 62



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (May 20, 2013) Page 2 of 6 

 
Mr. Paul Bock, Newberg resident, wants reconsideration of the cost for the College Street improvements.  He 
wants to ask Council to use funds for this project similar to the funds used for the Crestview Drive project, 
which is outside city limits.  The properties in the College Street LID are middle to lower class residents of the 
community.  As it stands now, the homeowners in the College Street LID will fully fund the improvements with 
no help from the city and they had little time to organize before the hearings.  He stated they understand the 
improvements will add value to their homes but are still asking for help from the city.  The issue is with their 
added financial obligations and having no support from the city.  Mr. Bock asked if the city can pay for the 
College Street project from the same fund as paid for the Crestview Drive project, which is also paying for 
improvements to Sheridan Street in front of the Chehalem Cultural Center.  Mr. Daniel Danicic said the 
Crestview Drive project used System Development Charges (SDC) funds.  Councilor Howard responded he is a 
little put off by the implication residents would believe their socioeconomic status is reflected in this project.  
He does not think one neighborhood or another is more deserving.   
 
Councilor Bart Rierson said at one time improvements like this were paid for by transportation funds and 
grants, but at a certain point in the past a councilor pushed the use of Waivers of Remonstrance for homeowners 
to pay for improvements.  In certain circumstances an LID is good for appropriate situations, but he does not 
feel it is for this situation.  He understands the waiver of remonstrance is usually found out in the middle of 
signing your mortgage payments, and may get lost in the shuffle of paperwork and not explained very well.  He 
will not support this at the next hearing. 
 
Mr. Louis Schaad, Newberg resident, stated he has some observations in relationship to the property the city 
owns on Corral Creek Road.  The city has mowed a part of the property and it looks good at a glance but what 
neighbors would like to see is the yellow scotch broom and blackberry bushes removed.  He asks the city to rid 
this area of the noxious weeds.  Councilor Rierson said he would like to request the city manager look into this 
with staff.  He mentioned the city encourages residents to take care of noxious weeds so the city should as well. 
  
VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion approving a sound permit for the Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce 
Tunes on Tuesday concert series. 

 
2. Consider a motion approving the April 1, 2013, and April 15, 2013, City Council meeting 

minutes. 
 
MOTION: Bacon/ Howard approving a sound permit for the Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce 
Tunes on Tuesday concert series and approving the April 1, 2013, and April 15, 2013, City Council meeting 
minutes.  Motion carried (6 Yes/0 No/1 Absent [Corey]). 
 
  
VII. PUBLIC HEARING 
TIME – 7:19 PM 
 

1. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2013-3042 approving the sale of a portion of city 
property to A to Z Winery Works. 

  
Mayor Andrews introduced the administrative hearing and called for any conflicts of interest or abstentions; 
none appeared. 
 
Mr. Terry Mahr, city attorney, and Jay Harris, city engineer, presented the staff report (see official meeting 
packet for full report).  Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 2013-3042. 

Page 63



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (May 20, 2013) Page 3 of 6 

 
Mr. Ernie Munch, Owners Representative, added to the staff report with some drawings of the property and 
highlights of the pieces of property that would be purchased.  1.62 acres is in consideration for the sale.   
 
Councilor McKinney asked how the city came to obtain ownership of Otis Springs.  Mr. Danicic replied it was 
used for water at first, but now is for non drinking use only because it is no longer potable.   
 
Mayor Andrews said he will be voting in favor of this resolution and feels it is good for the community.  
Councilor Rierson said he will also be voting in favor of this and feels staff gave a good presentation on it. 
 
MOTION: Howard/Rierson adopting Resolution No. 2013-3042 approving the sale of a portion of city 
property to A to Z Winery Works.  Motion carried (6 Yes/0 No/1 Absent [Corey]). 
 
 

2. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2013-3043 authorizing redevelopment and transfer 
of city property to Newberg Area Habitat for Humanity. 

 
Mayor Andrews introduced the administrative hearing and called for any conflicts of interest or abstentions; 
Councilor Denise Bacon excused herself because she is on the board of Habitat for Humanity. 

  
Mr. Barton Brierley, Building and Planning Director, presented the staff report (see official meeting packet for 
full report).  Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 2013-3043. 
 
Mr. Mahr stated he talked with the chairman for Habitat for Humanity and believes it is best to leave the option 
to assist them with projects and allow authority to be delegated to the city manager.  He stated when they started 
this project they did not know who would partner with them and now ownership can be transferred without any 
fees.  He feels they are definitely doing themselves a favor by being flexible. 
 
Councilor Howard said he is not yet convinced this is the best way to use the money.  He is looking at it being 
developed into just two residential homes when they may be able to spread the money out to more 
developments.  He feels the city could possibly use the funds from the sale of the property rather than build on 
it.  Mr. Brierley replied the city had hired an appraiser that came up with the $70,000.00 estimate.  When 
Habitat for Humanity established their concept budget they came up with $120,000.00 and he doesn’t know the 
source of that amount. Mr. Mahr said the appraisal was done by city in 2005. 
 
Rick Rogers, Habitat for Humanity, answered the question about the appraisal by stating they pegged a figure 
that was correct at the time for a developed lot, which this lot is not.  Mr. Rogers explained they develop single 
family homes and the council felt that was the best use of the property in previous discussions.  The city 
obtained the property by donation.  Mayor Andrews asked if the city has anything invested in the land.  Mr. 
Rogers said he believes the city was given the land and has not put any money into it.  Mayor Andrews asked if 
this were to pass if the property were to get put on the tax rolls.  Staff responded yes. 
 
Councilor McKinney asked about the discussion to change this to three dwellings instead of two.  Mr. Rogers 
said there was interest from the property owner behind the property to sell a small portion to allow some 
expansion.  He said it has not been looked into recently, so there is still some potential for that.   
 
Mayor Andrews stated he will be supporting this motion and particularly feels it is a beneficial move since the 
property was given to the city and can be put on the tax rolls.  He said he is also a strong supporter of Habitat 
for Humanity.  Councilor Rierson said he will support this as well and wanted to remind Council they are trying 
to create more affordable housing and he believes it is a valuable asset to the community.  He mentioned 
Habitat for Humanity worked on the animal shelter as well and the city appreciated the help.  Councilor 

Page 64



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (May 20, 2013) Page 4 of 6 

McKinney said he will also support this and feels it is a good way to pay it forward as far as the property being 
given to the city to begin with. 
 
MOTION: Rierson/Woodruff adopting Resolution No. 2013-3043 authorizing redevelopment and 
transfer of city property to Newberg Area Habitat for Humanity.  Motion carried (5 Yes/0 No/1 Abstain 
[Bacon]/1 Absent [Corey]). 

 
3. Consider a motion adopting Ordinance No. 2013-2761 adopting revisions to the findings for the 

South Industrial UGB amendment and Economic Opportunities Analysis. 
 

Mayor Andrews introduced the legislative hearing and called for any conflicts of interest or abstentions; none 
appeared. 

 
Mr. Barton Brierley, Building and Planning Director, presented the staff report (see official meeting packet for 
full report).  Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2013-2761. 
 
Mr. Brierley said they did receive a letter late and it is up to the council whether to accept the letter.   

 
MOTION: Bacon/McKinney to accept the letter from Anne Wylie.  Motion carried (6 Yes/0 No/1 
Absent [Corey]). 
 
MOTION: Rierson/Bacon adopting Ordinance No. 2013-2761 adopting revisions to the findings for 
the South Industrial UGB amendment and Economic Opportunities Analysis. Read by title only. 
 
MOTION: McKinney/Rierson waive first reading on Ordinance No. 2013-2761 
Motion carried.  (6 Yes/0 No/1 Absent [Corey]). 
 
Councilor Woodruff stated she realizes they have adopted the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) agreement, but 
will not be supporting the revisions.  She is not comfortable with adding more infrastructure projects to an 
already problematic budget.  Councilor Howard also stated he will be voting in opposition to these revisions due 
to the fact he wants a different approach.  He feels rather than expanding the land supply, he thinks the city can 
do better with what we already have. He would like to see a little more inclusiveness in the city and wants the 
city to have a desire to do more than just expand.  
 
Councilor Rierson said he was hoping they can explain funding mechanisms for the UGB to Councilor 
Woodruff.  He said these kinds of expansions are paid through SDCs and owners of the property.  It is fair to 
assume there are no funding mechanisms which are going to affect the city’s budget and expansion will bring 
money into the city with taxes from the property owners.  Mr. Danicic agreed on both accounts.   
 
Mayor Andrews asked staff if they have a work plan for the infrastructure to relieve the burden that Councilor 
Woodruff is wrestling with.  Mr. Brierley replied yes the land has development potential and it will generate 
jobs and construction of necessary infrastructure.  Councilor Howard asked if funds will be coming from 
existing SDC’s.  Mr. Brierley responded yes there is a possibility for an advance. 
 
Councilor McKinney said he wants to develop the best possible plan, similar to Councilor Howard.; however, 
any plan will end up looking much the same and they will still be jumping through the same hoops and still 
facing the same objections.  He feels they have arrived at a time to move forward with this project; he would 
have liked to see more cooperation from all parties, appreciates the comments, and thinks they need to just 
clarify things for now and can define further in the future. 

Page 65



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (May 20, 2013) Page 5 of 6 

Mayor Andrews said this is not something that will be developed for at least the next 20-25 years into the 
future.  If they do not pursue this approach they are denying the tools that are useful for tomorrow.  They are not 
planning for the next 2-3 years.  He said he will be supporting this ordinance. 
 
VOTE:  adopting Ordinance No. 2013-2761 adopting revisions to the findings for the South Industrial UGB 
amendment and Economic Opportunities Analysis.  Read by title only. 
Motion carried (4Yes/2 No [Howard, Woodruff]/1 Absent [Corey]). 
 

4. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2013-3044 approving Supplemental Budget #4 for 
fiscal year 2012-2013. 

 
Mayor Andrews introduced the administrative hearing and called for any conflicts of interest or abstentions; 
none appeared. 
 
Ms. Janelle Nordyke, finance director, presented the staff report (see official meeting packet for full report). 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 2013-3044. 
 
Councilor Woodruff asked what the state revenues are from Dundee 911.  Ms. Nordyke responded it is the 
landline bill for 911 calls.  She explained from now on, Newberg is receiving the money for those funds from 
Dundee. 

 
MOTION: McKinney/Bacon adopting Resolution No. 2013-3044 approving Supplemental Budget #4 
for fiscal year 2012-2013.  Motion carried (6 Yes/0 No/1 Absent [Corey]). 
  
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

Consider adopting Resolution No. 2013-3046 approving the Newberg Dundee Bypass Loan Agreement. 
  
 This item was removed from the agenda per Mayor Andrews. 
 
IX. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
TIME – 8:31 PM 
 
Councilor Rierson asked about the public comment from the Ford Family Foundation project requesting the 
$500.00 contribution from the Community Support fund.  Mr. Danicic stated Council has not expended the 
Community Support fund in fiscal year 2012-2013. 
 
MOTION: Howard/Rierson allocate $500.00 from Community Support fund to Cohort 3 for the 
planetary path project.    Motion carried (6 Yes/0 No/1 Absent [Corey]). 
 
Mr. Danicic said he is looking for some direction from council on the Villa Road sidewalk. 
 
Councilor Rierson said he would certainly like to look at an engineers report before providing input. The least 
obtrusive sidewalk would be up against the curb and he suggested they approach these homeowners and see if 
they would work with the city.   There is not a continuous sidewalk there, but in the end he would like to see a 
sidewalk there.  
 
Councilor Howard said it is unfortunate the property owners have been unwilling to work with the city in the 
past.  He then asked if they could put it in a LID for future repairs in the area.  Councilor Woodruff stated she 
would like to have more information on this subject. 
 

Page 66



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (May 20, 2013) Page 6 of 6 

Mayor Andrews said one potential approach would be to build the right-of-way with the homeowner only 
paying for the sidewalk portion.  There is a lot of pedestrian activity on this sidewalk and it is important to 
pursue this with the homeowners.  Councilor McKinney stated on one or more occasion they have not wanted to 
work with the city and in this particular case they should set a precedent that the city is trying to make the area 
pedestrian friendly.  Other property owners have met the obligation and he believes it is time for the city to 
pursue this issue. 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:47 PM. 
 

ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this 17th day of June, 2013. 
 
 

    _______________________________ 
     Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 
 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 20th day of June, 2013. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor  
 
 
 
 

Page 67



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 68



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: June 17, 2013 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion XX  Information ___ 
No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Vacation of the Ninth Street right-of-
way portion dedicated to the City between Industrial 
Parkway and Highway 219. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Steve Olson, AICP 
Dept.: Planning & Building 
File No.: VAC-11-002 

HEARING TYPE:  LEGISLATIVE  QUASI-JUDICIAL  NOT APPLICABLE 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Take public testimony regarding support for or objections to the proposed 
vacation, and the effect the proposed vacation may have on the market value of abutting properties. 
Consider the merits of the vacation and the requirements of ORS 271.130. Based on the testimony received 
to date, staff recommends City Council make a motion to tentatively approve the vacation, conditional upon 
Airpark Properties, LLC, supplying by September 17, 2013, legal descriptions and exhibits prepared by a 
surveyor of the area to be vacated and any necessary utility and access easements as noted in the previous 
July 5, 2011, tentative approval. Direct staff to prepare an ordinance for final approval after the exhibits and 
utility easements have been reviewed by staff.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
Right of way map  

 

Norman Family Trust 

 

Page 69



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 2 

Background:  In January, 2011, Airpark Properties, LLC, represented by Jerry Dale, and the Norman Family 
Trust, represented by Gerald and Sandra Norman, submitted an application (file # VAC-11-002) requesting 
the City vacate the portion of the Ninth Street right-of-way (ROW) between Industrial Parkway and 
Highway 219. Their properties are the only properties abutting the proposed vacation area. Both property 
owners consented to the vacation, as did other nearby property owners in the affected area of the vacation. 
The City Council held a public hearing on July 5, 2011, and concluded the right-of-way dedicated to the 
City was no longer necessary as a street and should be vacated, as long as necessary utility easements and 
access easements had been created. The Council made a motion tentatively approving Ordinance No. 2011-
2742, vacating the right-of-way conditional upon the applicant supplying any necessary utility and access 
easements along with legal descriptions and exhibits prepared by a surveyor of the area to be vacated. 
Council directed staff to prepare an ordinance including the right-of-way and easement exhibits for final 
approval. The item was tabled. 
 
In order to finalize the vacation, the property owners were required by the tentative approval to grant each 
other an access easement to Industrial Parkway over a portion of the vacated right-of-way. The two parties 
could not come to an agreement on the easement. On June 20, 2012, John Bridges, representing the Norman 
Family Trust, sent the City a letter withdrawing the Norman's consent for the vacation application (Exhibit 
“A”). On July 9, 2012, Jerry Dale, a member of Airpark Properties, LLC, sent the city a letter saying the 
vacation was still in the best interests of the city and asking the city to proceed with the vacation without the 
consent of the Normans (Exhibit “B”). 
 
On August 20, 2012, the City Council decided to take the vacation proposal off the table, and schedule a 
public hearing for October 15, 2012, to take public testimony and evaluate the proposal. Notice was mailed 
to property owners in the affected area. Letters have been received from two property owners objecting to 
the vacation (Exhibit “A”, Norman and Swonger letters) and one letter has been received supporting the 
vacation (Exhibit “B”, Airpark Properties, LLC, letter). On October 15, 2012, the City Council postponed 
the hearing until February 19, 2013, to allow the property owners additional time to discuss the proposal. 
Staff met with both parties on December 12, 2012, to see if an agreement could be reached. The discussions 
did not result in such an agreement. On February 19, 2013, the Council postponed the hearing to May 6, 
2013, to allow the property owners additional time. On May 6, 2013, the Council postponed the hearing 
until June 17, 2013, because of a full agenda in May. 
 
Process: Vacation without consent: ORS 271.130 allows a city to vacate public right-of-way without the 
consent of abutting property owners under certain conditions. However, the vacation cannot be completed if:  

• The owners of a majority of the affected area, computed on the basis provided in ORS 271.080, 
object in writing to the vacation. 

• The vacation will substantially affect the market value of the abutting property, unless the City 
provides for paying damages. Provisions for paying such damages may be made by a local 
assessment, or in such other manner as the city charter may provide. 

 
ORS 271.130:  Vacation on city governing body’s own motion; appeal.  
 (1) The city governing body may initiate vacation proceedings authorized by ORS 271.080 
and make such vacation without a petition or consent of property owners. Notice shall be given as 
provided by ORS 271.110, but such vacation shall not be made before the date set for hearing, nor 
if the owners of a majority of the area affected, computed on the basis provided in ORS 271.080, 
object in writing thereto, nor shall any street area be vacated without the consent of the owners of 
the abutting property if the vacation will substantially affect the market value of such property, 
unless the city governing body provides for paying damages. Provision for paying such damages 
may be made by a local assessment, or in such other manner as the city charter may provide. 

Page 70



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 3 

 (2) Two or more streets, alleys, avenues and boulevards, or parts thereof, may be joined in 
one proceeding, provided they intersect or are adjacent and parallel to each other. 
 (3) No ordinance for the vacation of all or part of a plat shall be passed by the governing 
body until the city recording officer has filed in the office of the city recording officer or indorsed on 
the petition for such vacation a certificate showing that all city liens and all taxes have been paid on 
the lands covered by the plat or portion thereof to be vacated. 
 (4) Any property owner affected by the order of vacation or the order awarding damages or 
benefits in such vacation proceedings may appeal to the circuit court of the county where such city 
is situated in the manner provided by the city charter. If the charter does not provide for such 
appeal, the appeal shall be taken within the time and in substantially the manner provided for taking 
an appeal from justice court in civil cases. [Amended by 1995 c.658 §101] 
 
271.080 Vacation in incorporated cities; petition; consent of property owners.  

(excerpt) The real property affected thereby shall be deemed to be the land lying on either 
side of the street or portion thereof proposed to be vacated and extending laterally to the 
next street that serves as a parallel street, but in any case not to exceed 200 feet, and the 
land for a like lateral distance on either side of the street for 400 feet along its course 
beyond each terminus of the part proposed to be vacated. Where a street is proposed to be 
vacated to its termini, the land embraced in an extension of the street for a distance of 400 
feet beyond each terminus shall also be counted.  

 
Staff expects the City Council will hear public testimony at the June 17, 2013, hearing regarding support for 
and objections to the proposed vacation and the effect the vacation may have on the market value of abutting 
properties.  
 

Written objections criteria:  If the owners of a majority of the affected area object in writing to the 
vacation then it cannot proceed (a map of the affected properties is shown in Exhibit “C”).  
 
Finding: The city has received objections in writing from the Norman Family trust (12.5% of the 
affected area) and from Darlene Swonger (25% of the affected area). This means that owners of 37.5% 
of the affected area have objected in writing to the vacation as of the writing of this report. This is less 
than a majority of the affected area, so the written objections do not prevent the vacation from 
proceeding. 
 
Market value criteria:  If the vacation is determined to substantially affect the market value of the 
abutting properties then the vacation cannot proceed unless the City Council provides for paying 
damages.  
 
Finding: The northern abutting property owner, Airpark Properties, LLC, is in favor of the vacation.  
The southern abutting property owner, the Norman Family Trust, has submitted testimony that the 
vacation would reduce the value of their property so this finding will focus on the impact to the Norman 
property.  

• Gain additional property: If the ROW is vacated then the area reverts to the property that 
originally dedicated the ROW. The Norman's existing site is approximately 37,350 square feet, 
and the Yamhill County Tax Assessor's database estimates the market value of the land is 
$214,053.00 (or $5.73 per square foot). The vacation would add approximately 3,500 square feet 
to the site.  Using the tax assessor's market value per square foot, this means that the additional 
property from the ROW vacation may be worth approximately $20,000.00. Most of this 
additional property will have a utility easement over it, so that could affect the value. We don't 

Page 71



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 4 

know how up to date the tax assessor's estimate is, so the actual value may be higher or lower 
than our calculation. It does seem clear that gaining approximately 3,500 square feet of property 
would increase the market value of the Norman's property. 

• Front yard setback eliminated: The M-2 light industrial zone requires that buildings and 
parking areas be setback at least 20 feet from the front property line. There is no side setback 
requirement. The northern property line of the Norman's site is a front property line, so there is a 
20 foot setback required from this line. The front setback is a significant restriction on the 
development of the site. The vacation would move the northern property line of the Norman's 
site north between 10-30 feet (it is curved), and change it from a front property line to a side 
property line. That means that there would no longer be a setback required from the northern 
property line, which removes a significant restriction. The vacation would remove the 20 foot 
setback from the existing property, which would increase the usable area and design flexibility 
of the site, improve the ability to maneuver around the site, and should increase the market value 
of the site. 

• Dual access: The Norman's property currently has a driveway access on Industrial Parkway, and 
has the ability to add a driveway access on 9th Street. Some of the testimony that was submitted 
expressed concern that the 9th Street vacation would significantly reduce the value of the 
Norman's property by removing the ability to build a drive-through building on the site 
(essentially a showroom for large equipment, where the equipment could be driven into the 
building from the parking lot and then north out of the building onto 9th Street). The testimony 
seemed to assume the existing street improvements in the 9th Street ROW would be removed. 
The city would not remove the 9th Street improvements as part of the vacation, however, so the 
paving would remain unless removed by the property owner. The Norman's site could still add a 
drive-through building, where equipment could be driven north out of the building onto the 
paved portion of the Norman's property and out to Industrial Parkway through the public access 
easement. The vacation appears to have a neutral effect on this aspect of the Norman's property, 
as the property would retain the ability to have dual access.  

• Parking: The existing 9th Street ROW has room for approximately 14 parallel parking spaces. 
These are not ideal parking spaces, since the street is not improved to its full width and is 
currently a dead end street without a turnaround. These spaces are not the property of either 
abutting property owner; they are public parking spaces that can be used by anyone, including 
both abutting property owners. Other businesses in the neighborhood sometimes park vehicles in 
the 9th Street ROW and use the area for vehicle storage and display. If the northern abutting 
property is developed then their driveway onto the 9th Street ROW will remove 2-3 on-street 
public parking spaces. If the southern abutting property develops a driveway onto the 9th Street 
ROW then their driveway will remove approximately 2-3 on-street public parking spaces. 

o If the 9th Street ROW is vacated then its public on-street parking would no longer exist, 
as the ROW would revert to private property. The half-street improvement would not be 
removed, however, so the paving and curb would remain. A public access easement (25 
feet wide by 40 feet deep) would be placed over the center of the ROW to provide access 
to Industrial Parkway for both parcels.  The vacation would increase the ability of the 
Norman's to develop additional private off-street parking on their site, since the vacation 
would increase the size of the site and eliminate the front setback from 9th Street. The 
effect of the vacation on parking appears to be neutral, as the loss of public on-street 
spaces that may be used by anyone is offset by gaining additional property and the 
elimination of the front setback from 9th Street, which allows the Norman's to develop 
more private parking on their site.  

• Buffer: The existing 9th Street ROW does provide a 60 foot wide buffer between the properties 
to the north and south. If the ROW is vacated then some or all of the ROW will have a utility 

Page 72



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 5 

easement over it. There are public and franchise utility lines in the ROW, though their exact 
locations have not yet been determined. Public utility easements are typically 15 feet wide. At a 
minimum, there would be a 15 foot wide public utility easement in the vacated ROW. It is more 
likely that the public utility easements will cover 30-40 feet of the width of the vacated ROW, 
and it may turn out to be simplest to place a public utility easement over the entire vacated area 
so that precisely locating the utility lines is not necessary. If the ROW is vacated then the public 
utility easement will continue to provide some buffer between the northern and southern 
properties. The effect of the vacation on the buffer appears to be neutral or slightly negative. 
While it is difficult to place a value on the potential difference in the buffer area, it seems less 
significant than the increase in value from the additional property and from the elimination of the 
front setback from 9th Street. 

• Sign: The Norman's site has a freestanding sign near Highway 219, which has good visibility 
north and south on 219. The submitted testimony stated the sign was valuable to the business and 
helped bring in new customers, and there is no doubt that is true. It is hard to see, however, how 
the proposed vacation of the city's 9th Street ROW would reduce the visibility of the sign from 
Highway 219 (see the right of way map exhibit). The east end of the 9th Street right of way is 
owned by ODOT, and is not being vacated.  

• Maintenance: The city is currently required to maintain the pavement in the 9th Street ROW, 
and the Norman Family Trust, as the adjacent property owner, is required to maintain the 
sidewalk along their 9th Street frontage. If the sidewalk developed a tripping hazard then the 
Normans would be required to repair that section of sidewalk. If the 9th Street ROW is vacated 
as proposed then the city would no longer maintain the pavement. The Normans, however, 
would then own the improvements in the ROW and could remove the sidewalk if they wished.   

 
The Council should listen to public testimony, consider the merits of the vacation and the requirements of 
ORS 271.130, and make a motion to either: 1) Tentatively approve the vacation without the consent of one 
abutting property owner, conditional upon Airpark Properties, LLC supplying by September 17, 2013, legal 
descriptions and exhibits prepared by a surveyor of the area to be vacated and any necessary utility and 
access easements as noted in the previous July 5, 2011, tentative approval. Direct staff to prepare an 
ordinance for final approval after the exhibits and utility easements have been submitted and reviewed by 
staff; or 2) withdraw the July 5, 2011, tentative approval and end consideration of the vacation. 
 
City staff recommends this segment of the Ninth Street right of way is no longer needed as a public street, 
and utility easements can protect the public interest in the existing utility lines. A public access easement 
can be created prior to the vacation to provide access to both properties from Industrial Parkway. Staff 
expects the vacation will slightly increase the market value of both abutting properties. The city would no 
longer need to maintain this section of Ninth Street if it was vacated. On the whole, city staff believes the 
proposed vacation is in the public interest.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  There is potential for a small positive impact if the vacated area is developed, as the 
City would collect development fees and property taxes. There is potential for a negative impact if the City 
were required to pay damages if the vacation substantially affected the market value of abutting properties. 
If the City Council decision is appealed then there would be some cost to the City to defend the decision. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  The property is no longer needed as a public street, as ODOT has extended 
Industrial Parkway to the north and installed a traffic light to control access to Highway 219. Utility 
easements can protect the public interest in the existing utility lines, and a public access easement will 
provide access to both properties from Industrial Parkway. The Council previously heard testimony 
regarding the vacation (when it was initiated by the abutting property owners) and tentatively approved the 

Page 73



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 6 

vacation. Vacation of the right-of-way will return the property to the abutting owners and allow them to 
develop the property in the future. The vacation will probably increase the market value of abutting 
properties, so the risk of the City needing to make provisions for paying damages is probably small. The 
City Council will have to weigh that risk against the public benefit of proceeding with the vacation. 
 

Page 74



 
EXHIBIT "A" 

 OBJECTIONS TO THE VACATION 
 

 

 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 7 

Page 75



 

 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 8 

Page 76



 

 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 9 

Page 77



 

 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 10 

Page 78



 

 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 11 

Page 79



 

 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 12 

Page 80



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 13 

Page 81



 
 
 

EXHIBIT "B"  
SUPPORT FOR THE VACATION 

 

 
 

 

 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 14 

Page 82



EXHIBIT "C"  
MAP OF THE AFFECTED AREA 

 

 
 

 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 15 

Page 83



Ninth Street Vacation ‐ affected area

dress Owner
 Affected area
(square feet) 

% of total 
affected area

1 2901 E. 9th St. Airpark Prop. LLC 21,198                          7.1%
2

17,252                          5.8%
7

298,833                 100%

Number Ad

832 S. Springbrook Rd. Darlene Swonger Trust 74,802                          25.0%
3 905 S. Wilsonville Rd. Donald Brooks 3,562                            1.2%
4 1001 S. Wilsonville Rd. Cecil & Clara Brown Trust 11,850                          4.0%
5 900 Ind. Pkwy Norman Family Trust 37,350                          12.5%
6 1000 Ind. Pkwy Frank Harris

901 Ind. Pkwy William & Margaret Thurman 17,867                          6.0%
8 1005 Ind. Pkwy Jarrett Rose 15,914                          5.3%
9 1005 Ind. Pkwy, C100 Lisa Shepherd 2,342                            0.8%
10 1005 Ind. Pkwy, PO box 517 PC Electric LLC 1,261                            0.4%
11 1005 Ind. Pkwy, PO box 517 NW Leasing & Aquis. 1,261                            0.4%
12 2900 E. 9th St. R. & S. Olson 20,051                          6.7%
13 2800 E. 9th St. Jamie L. Nibler Trust 8,607                            2.9%
14 2771 E. 9th St. Newberg Bus. Ctr. LLC 13,460                          4.5%
15 2803 E. 9th St. 9th St. Hangars LLC 2,504                            0.8%
16 2901 E. 9th St. Airpark Prop. LLC 49,552                          16.6%

Total affected area =        

 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 16 

Page 84



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 17 

EXHIBIT "D"  
FULL TEXT OF OREGON REVISED STATUTES 271.080 - 271.230 

(2) There shall be appended to such petition, as a part thereof and as a basis for granting the same, the 

rt 

he owners of the required 
m

 recorder to be sufficient, the recorder shall file it and inform at least one 

ody. The city governing body may deny the petition after notice to 
e petitioners of such proposed action, but if there appears to be no reason why the petition should not be 

hall be posted in three of the most public places in the city. The notices shall describe 
e ground covered by the petition, give the date it was filed, the name of at least one of the petitioners and 

t and Street Vacation,” as the case 
ay be. The notice shall be posted in at least two conspicuous places in the proposed vacation area. The 

 
VACATION 
 
 271.080 Vacation in incorporated cities; petition; consent of property owners. (1) Whenever any 
person interested in any real property in an incorporated city in this state desires to vacate all or part of any 
street, avenue, boulevard, alley, plat, public square or other public place, such person may file a petition 
therefor setting forth a description of the ground proposed to be vacated, the purpose for which the ground is 
proposed to be used and the reason for such vacation. 
 
consent of the owners of all abutting property and of not less than two-thirds in area of the real property 
affected thereby. The real property affected thereby shall be deemed to be the land lying on either side of the 
street or portion thereof proposed to be vacated and extending laterally to the next street that serves as a 
parallel street, but in any case not to exceed 200 feet, and the land for a like lateral distance on either side of 
the street for 400 feet along its course beyond each terminus of the part proposed to be vacated. Where a 
street is proposed to be vacated to its termini, the land embraced in an extension of the street for a distance 
of 400 feet beyond each terminus shall also be counted. In the vacation of any plat or part thereof the 
consent of the owner or owners of two-thirds in area of the property embraced within such plat or pa
thereof proposed to be vacated shall be sufficient, except where such vacation embraces street area, when, as 
to such street area the above requirements shall also apply. The consent of t
a ount of property shall be in writing. [Amended by 1999 c.866 §2] 
 
 271.090 Filing of petition; notice. The petition shall be presented to the city recorder or other recording 
officer of the city. If found by the
of the petitioners when the petition will come before the city governing body. A failure to give such 
information shall not be in any respect a lack of jurisdiction for the governing body to proceed on the 
petition. 
 
 271.100 Action by city governing b
th
allowed in whole or in part, the governing body shall fix a time for a formal hearing upon the petition. 
 
 271.110 Notice of hearing. (1) The city recorder or other recording officer of the city shall give notice 
of the petition and hearing by publishing a notice in the city official newspaper once each week for two 
consecutive weeks prior to the hearing. If no newspaper is published in such city, written notice of the 
petition and hearing s
th
the date when the petition, and any objection or remonstrance, which may be made in writing and filed with 
the recording officer of the city prior to the time of hearing, will be heard and considered. 
 (2) Within five days after the first day of publication of the notice, the city recording officer shall cause 
to be posted at or near each end of the proposed vacation a copy of the notice, which shall be headed, 
“Notice of Street Vacation,” “Notice of Plat Vacation” or “Notice of Pla
m
posting and first day of publication of such notice shall be at least 14 days before the hearing. 
 (3) The city recording officer shall, before publishing such notice, obtain from the petitioners a sum 
sufficient to cover the cost of publication, posting and other anticipated expenses. The city recording officer 
shall hold the sum so obtained until the actual cost has been ascertained, when the amount of the cost shall 
be paid into the city treasury and any surplus refunded to the depositor. [Amended by 1991 c.629 §1; 2005 

Page 85



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 18 

c.22 §196] 
 
 271.120 Hearing; determination. At the time fixed by the governing body for hearing the petition and 

ch matters are determined in favor of the petition the 
overning body shall by ordinance make such determination a matter of record and vacate such plat or 

mputed on the 

s the city charter may provide. 

m justice court in civil 
ases. [Amended by 1995 c.658 §101] 

 of rededication. No street shall be vacated upon the petition of any 

 it shall require a suitable guarantee to be given for the carrying 

any objections filed thereto or at any postponement or continuance of such matter, the governing body shall 
hear the petition and objections and shall determine whether the consent of the owners of the requisite area 
has been obtained, whether notice has been duly given and whether the public interest will be prejudiced by 
the vacation of such plat or street or parts thereof. If su
g
street; otherwise it shall deny the petition. The governing body may, upon hearing, grant the petition in part 
and deny it in part, and make such reservations, or either, as appear to be for the public interest. 
 
 271.130 Vacation on city governing body’s own motion; appeal. (1) The city governing body may 
initiate vacation proceedings authorized by ORS 271.080 and make such vacation without a petition or 
consent of property owners. Notice shall be given as provided by ORS 271.110, but such vacation shall not 
be made before the date set for hearing, nor if the owners of a majority of the area affected, co
basis provided in ORS 271.080, object in writing thereto, nor shall any street area be vacated without the 
consent of the owners of the abutting property if the vacation will substantially affect the market value of 
such property, unless the city governing body provides for paying damages. Provision for paying such 
damages may be made by a local assessment, or in such other manner a
 (2) Two or more streets, alleys, avenues and boulevards, or parts thereof, may be joined in one 
proceeding, provided they intersect or are adjacent and parallel to each other. 
 (3) No ordinance for the vacation of all or part of a plat shall be passed by the governing body until the 
city recording officer has filed in the office of the city recording officer or indorsed on the petition for such 
vacation a certificate showing that all city liens and all taxes have been paid on the lands covered by the plat 
or portion thereof to be vacated. 
 (4) Any property owner affected by the order of vacation or the order awarding damages or benefits in 
such vacation proceedings may appeal to the circuit court of the county where such city is situated in the 
manner provided by the city charter. If the charter does not provide for such appeal, the appeal shall be taken 
within the time and in substantially the manner provided for taking an appeal fro
c
 
 271.140 Title to vacated areas. The title to the street or other public area vacated shall attach to the 
lands bordering on such area in equal portions; except that where the area has been originally dedicated by 
different persons and the fee title to such area has not been otherwise disposed of, original boundary lines 
shall be adhered to and the street area which lies on each side of such boundary line shall attach to the 
abutting property on such side. If a public square is vacated the title thereto shall vest in the city. [Amended 
by 1981 c.153 §58] 
 
 271.150 Vacation records to be filed; costs. A certified copy of the ordinance vacating any street or 
plat area and any map, plat or other record in regard thereto which may be required or provided for by law, 
shall be filed for record with the county clerk. The petitioner for such vacation shall bear the recording cost 
and the cost of preparing and filing the certified copy of the ordinance and map. A certified copy of any such 
ordinance shall be filed with the county assessor and county surveyor. 
 
 271.160 Vacations for purposes
person when it is proposed to replat or rededicate all or part of any street in lieu of the original unless such 
petition is accompanied by a plat showing the proposed manner of replatting or rededicating. If the proposed 
manner of replatting or rededicating or any modification thereof which may subsequently be made meets 
with the approval of the city governing body,

Page 86



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 19 

out of such replatting or rededication or may make any vacation conditional or to take effect only upon the 

271.180 Vacations in municipalities included in port districts; petition; power of common council; 

erty abutting any such terminal, may: 
(1) Authorize any port commission, dock commission, common carrier, railroad company or terminal 

e 

the same character as previously owned by it in the exclusive strip which it is 
quired by the city governing body to surrender and dedicate to street purposes. 

271.190 Consent of owners of adjoining property; other required approval. No vacation of all or 
part of a street, alley, common or public place shall take place under ORS 271.180 unless the consent of the 
persons owning the property immediately adjoining that part of the street or alley to be vacated is obtained 
thereto in writing and filed with the auditor or clerk of the city or town. No vacation shall be made of any 
street, alley, public place or part thereof, if within 5,000 feet of the harbor or pierhead line of the port, unless 
the port commission, or other bodies having jurisdiction over docks and wharves in the port district 
involved, approves the proposed vacation in writing. 
 
 271.200 Petition; notice. (1) Before any street, alley, common or public place or any part thereof is 
vacated, or other right granted by any city governing body under ORS 271.180 to 271.210 the applicant 
must petition the governing body of the city or town involved, setting forth the particular circumstances of 
the case, giving a definite description of the property sought to be vacated, or of the right, use or occupancy 
sought to be obtained, and the names of the persons to be particularly affected thereby. The petition shall be 
filed with the auditor or clerk of the city or town involved 30 days previous to the taking of any action 
thereon by the city governing body. 
 (2) Notice of the pendency of the petition, containing a description of the area sought to be vacated or 
right, use or occupancy sought to be obtained, shall be published at least once each week for three 
successive weeks prior to expiration of such 30-day period in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
county wherein the city or town is located. 

consummation of such replatting or rededication. 
 
 271.170 Nature and operation of statutes. The provisions of ORS 271.080 to 271.160 are alternative to 
the provisions of the charter of any incorporated city and nothing contained in those statutes shall in anywise 
affect or impair the charter or other provisions of such cities for the preservation of public access to and 
from transportation terminals and navigable waters. 
 
 
vacating street along railroad easement. To the end that adequate facilities for terminal trackage, 
structures and the instrumentalities of commerce and transportation may be provided in cities and towns 
located within or forming a part of any port district organized as a municipal corporation in this state, the 
governing body of such cities and towns, upon the petition of any such port, or corporation empowered to 
own or operate a railroad, steamship or other transportation terminal, or railroad company entering or 
operating within such city or town, or owner of prop
 
company to occupy, by any structure, trackage or machinery facilitating or necessary to travel, 
transportation or distribution, any street or public property, or parts thereof, within such city or town, upon 
such reasonable terms and conditions as the city or town may impose. 
 (2) Vacate the whole or any part of any street, alley, common or public place, with such restrictions and 
upon such conditions as the city governing body may deem reasonable and for the public good. 
 (3) If any railroad company owns or has an exclusive easement upon a definite strip within or along any 
public street, alley, common or public place, and if the city governing body determines such action to be to 
th advantage of the public, vacate the street area between the strip so occupied by the railroad company and 
one property line opposite thereto, condition that the railroad company dedicates for street purposes such 
portion of such exclusive strip occupied by it as the city governing body may determine upon, and moves its 
tracks and facilities therefrom onto the street area so vacated. The right and title of the railroad company in 
the vacated area shall be of 
re
 
 

Page 87



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 20 

 
 271.210 Hearing; grant of petition. Hearing upon the petition shall be had by the city governing body 
at its next regular meeting following the expiration of 30 days from the filing of the petition. At that time 
objections to the granting of the whole or any part of the petition shall be duly heard and considered by the 
governing body, which shall thereupon, or at any later time to which the hearing is postponed or adjourned, 
pass by a majority vote an ordinance setting forth the property to be vacated, or other rights, occupancy or 
use to be thereby granted. Upon the expiration of 30 days from the passage of the ordinance and the 
approval thereof by the mayor of the city or town, the ordinance shall be in full force and effect. 
 
 271.220 Filing of objections; waiver. All objections to the petition shall be filed with the clerk or 
auditor of the city or town within 30 days from the filing of the petition, and if not so filed shall be 
conclusively presumed to have been waived. The regularity, validity and correctness of the proceedings of 
the city governing body pursuant to ORS 271.180 to 271.210, shall be conclusive in all things on all parties, 
and cannot in any manner be contested in any proceeding whatsoever by any person not filing written 
objections within the time provided in this section. 
 
 271.230 Records of vacations; fees. (1) If any town or plat of any city or town is vacated by a county 
court or municipal authority of any city or town, the vacation order or ordinance shall be recorded in the 
deed records of the county. Whenever a vacation order or ordinance is so recorded, the county surveyor of 
such county shall, upon a copy of the plat that is certified by the county clerk, trace or shade with permanent 
ink in such manner as to denote that portion so vacated, and shall make the notation “Vacated” upon such 
copy of the plat, giving the book and page of the deed record in which the order or ordinance is recorded. 
Corrections or changes shall not be allowed on the original plat once it is recorded with the county clerk. 
 (2) For recording in the county deed records, the county clerk shall collect the same fee as for recording 
a deed. For the services of the county surveyor for marking the record upon the copy of the plat, the county 
clerk shall collect a fee as set by ordinance of the county governing body to be paid by the county clerk to 
the county surveyor. [Amended by 1971 c.621 §31; 1975 c.607 §31; 1977 c.488 §2; 1979 c.833 §30; 1999 
c.710 §12; 2001 c.173 §5] 
 
 
 

Page 88



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3054 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: June 17, 2013 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution  _   Motion        Information _X_ 
No. No.  No.  

SUBJECT:  Residential Curbside Glass Recycling 
effective August 1, 2013 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Item: Maya Benham, Paralegal  
Dept.:  City Attorney’s Office 
File No.:   

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Waste Management (WM) is presenting on residential only curbside glass recycling. Presentation from WM 
on their Dundee curbside glass pilot results. Power point presentation is attached as Attachment “A”. If so 
desired by City Council, implementation of curbside glass recycling for residential customers and setting 
rates will be approved by City Council in Resolution No. 2013-3054. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
If approved, the rate would increase $0.75 per resident to cover WM costs. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
The City of Newberg strives to provide a clean and healthy environment for its citizens. WM has and 
continues to offer excellent garbage collection and recycling services to the community.  It is necessary to 
set collection rates that are adequate to ensure these services continue to be delivered and improved upon. 
The addition of curbside glass recycling will enhance customer service. 
 
 

Page 89



P
age 90



P
age 91



P
age 92



P
age 93



P
age 94



P
age 95



P
age 96



P
age 97



P
age 98



P
age 99



P
age 100



P
age 101



P
age 102



P
age 103



P
age 104



P
age 105



P
age 106



P
age 107



P
age 108



P
age 109



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 110



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3054 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: June 17, 2013 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2013-3054 

SUBJECT:  Approving Adjusted Solid Waste and 
Recycling Service Rates for Waste Management and 
Adding Residential Curbside Glass Recycling 
effective August 1, 2013 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Maya Benham, Paralegal  
Dept.:  City Attorney’s Office 
File No.:   

 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2013-3054 approving adjusted garbage and recycling 
service rates for Waste Management (WM) and to implement curbside glass recycling for residential 
customers effective August 1, 2013. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  The City has an exclusive franchise with WM for the hauling of garbage and 
the collection of recyclable materials within the City. The franchise agreement gives the City the right to 
regulate and fix rates.   
 
Resolution No. 1999-2160 adopted January 19, 1999 requiring the garbage rates be reviewed every two (2) 
years.   

History of approved rate increases: 
a. July 1999 - 3.39%  
b. July 2001 – 18.5% 
c. July 2003 – 0% 
d. July 2007 – 3.5% 
e. July 2009 – 4.23% 
f. July 2011 – 5.47% 

 
WM is requesting a 4.7% general rate increase effective August 1, 2013.  The proposed garbage and 
recycling rates for the Council’s review and consideration is attached as Exhibit “A” to the resolution. WM 
will be present at meeting to answer any questions. Their presentation is included as Attachment 1. In 
addition, WM is prepared to implement curbside glass recycling for only residential customers based on 
their successful pilot project in Dundee. The cost to residential customers is a flat $0.75 per month. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: If approved, garbage and recycling rates for customers within the City will increase by 
4.7%.  For the typical residential customer, the monthly rate would increase from $19.03 to $19.92 per 
month – an increase of $.89 per month. Newberg assesses a franchise fee of 3% of gross annual revenue. 
The proposed FY 2012/2013 City budget estimated franchise revenue of $80,704.00. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: The City of Newberg strives to provide a clean and healthy 
environment for its citizens. WM has and continues to offer excellent garbage collection and recycling 
services to the community.  It is necessary to set collection rates that are adequate to ensure that these 
services continue to be delivered and improved upon. The addition of curbside glass recycling will 
enhance customer service. 

Page 111



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3054 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING ADJUSTED GARBAGE AND RECYCLING 
SERVICE RATES FOR WASTE MANAGEMENT, AND ADDING CURBSIDE 
GLASS RECYCLING FOR RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS ONLY EFFECTIVE 
AUGUST 1, 2013   

 
RECITALS: 

 
1. The City has an exclusive franchise with Waste Management (WM) for the hauling of garbage as 

well as the collection of recyclable materials within the City. Section 1 & 2 of the Franchise 
Agreement between WM and the City gives the City the right to regulate and fix rates. An excerpt 
from the Franchise Agreement outlining Authorized Rates is hereby attached as Exhibit “B” and by 
this reference incorporated. 

 
2. WM acquired Newberg Garbage and Recycling Service, Inc. in the latter part of 2009. The Council 

approved the Consent to Transfer the franchise from Newberg Garbage and Recycling Service, Inc. 
to WM on January 18, 2010, pursuant to Resolution No. 2010-2882. 

 
3. Resolution No. 1999-2160 adopted January 19, 1999, requiring the garbage rates be reviewed every 

two (2) years. 
 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The garbage and recycling rates for individual services proposed by Waste Management (WM) is a 

4.7% general rate increase as shown in Exhibit “A” is hereby attached and by this reference 
incorporated. 

 
2. The 4.7% general rate increase will take effect on August 1, 2013. 

 
3. WM is hereby directed to include curbside collection of glass recycling for residential customers 

only. The cost for this service to the customer shall be $0.75 per month. Customers shall be notified 
a minimum of 30-days in advance of beginning the assessment of this fee. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: June 18, 2013. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 17th day of June, 2013. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 20th day of June, 2013. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3054 PAGE 1 

Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116


	Agenda
	Council District No. 3 Appointment
	Affordable Housing Commission Appointment
	Resolution No. 2013-3052 - College Street Sidewalk and Bike Lane Improvement Project IGA
	Resolution No. 2013-3055 - Purchase of a Freightliner Chassis
	Resolution No. 2013-3053 - Manager Pro Tem Designation
	City Council Minutes for May 20, 2013
	Ninth Street Right-of-Way Vacation
	Glass Recycling Curbside Pick Up Pilot Project Presentation
	Resolution No. 2013-3054 - Waste Management Rate Increase Request



